THE PUTNAM COUNTY LEGISLATURE
40 Gleneida Avenue
Carmel, New York 10512
(845) 808-1020 Fax (845) 808-1933

Nancy Montgomery Dist. 1
William Gouldman Dist. 2
Amy E. Sayegh Chairwoman Toni E. Addonizio Dist. 3
Greg E. Ellner Deputy Chair Laura E. Russo Dist. 4
Diane Schonfeld Clerk Greg E. Ellner Dist. 5
Paul E. Jonke Dist. 6
Danie] G. Birmingham Dist. 7
Amy E. Sayegh Dist. 8
Erin L. Crowley Dist. 9
AGENDA
PHYSICAL SERVICES COMMITTEE
TO BE HELD IN ROOM 318
PUTNAM COUNTY OFFICE BUILDING
CARMEL, NEW YORK 10512

(Chairman Ellner and Legislators Crowley & Jonke)

Thursday 5:30p.m. September 25, 2025

. Pledge of Allegiance

. Roll Call

. Acceptance/ Physical Services Meeting Minutes/ August 20th & Special -August 25, 2025

. Approval/ Budgetary Amendment 25A079/ Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)
Formula Funding for 2025/2026/ Commissioner Planning, Development and Public
Transportation Barbara Barosa

. Approval/ Budgetary Amendment 25A088/ Fund Cornell Cooperative Extension Tree
Seedling Program — Utilizing Part C Putnam County Soil & Water Conservation District
(SWCD) Funds -Per SWCD Resolution No. 002 of 2025

. Approval/ Department of Public Works (DPW)/ 2024- 2025 Snow & Ice Reimbursement/
DPW Deputy Commissioner Joseph Bellucci

. Approval/ 25CP05 — Walk in Cooler & Associated Repairs at Golf Course — Amount Not
To Exceed $50,000/ Department of Public Works Thomas Feighery



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Approval/ Contract- Terry Hill Route 311 Project/ Department of Public Works
Commissioner Thomas Feighery & Department of General Services Commissioner John
Tully

Approval/ Budgetary Amendment 25A080 - DPW — Empire State Development Grant —
Terry Hill Road Improvements/ Department of Public Works Commissioner Thomas
Feighery

Approval/ To Apply for NYS Roadway Departure Safety Action Plan (RwWDSAP) Local
Call for Projects Which Provided Federal Highway Safety Improvement Program Funds
For the Stoneleigh Avenue/ Drewville Road Intersection Reconstruction Project (PIN
8761.97) In Putnam County/ Commissioner of Dept of Planning, Development & Public
Transportation Barbara Barosa

Approval/ Ratification of 2025 Real Property Tax Sale/ Interim Commissioner of Finance
William Carlin

FYI/ Early Learning Center Student Enrollment Numbers: Currently Enrolled and
Number of Students Enrolled for January 2026

Other Business

Adjournment



Ehp qjasias
==

PHYSICAL SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING
HELD IN ROOM #318
PUTNAM COUNTY OFFICE BUILDING
CARMEL, NEW YORK 10512
Members: Chairman Ellner & Legislators Crowley & Jonke

Wednesday August 20, 2025
(Special Full Meeting Immediately Followed)

The meeting was called to order at 5:30 P.M. by Chairman Ellner who led in the Pledge of
Allegiance. Upon roll call Legislators Crowley and Jonke were absent. Chairman Ellner was
present, and stated Chairwoman of the Legislature, Legislator Sayegh would sit as a member of
the committee.

Item #3 - Acceptance/ Physical Services Meeting Minutes/ Junel0, 16 & July 17, 2025

Chairman Ellner stated a revised copy of the June 16® minutes were submitted as additional and
he included them and stated the minutes were accepted as submitted.

Item #4 — Reconsideration/Approval/ Stipulation - Inclusion of Parcel in the Putnam
County Agricultural District/ Senior Deputy County Attorney Heather Abissi

Chairman Ellner questioned Senior Deputy County Attorney Heather Abissi as to whether she
was present as Legislative Counsel or was she representing the County Law Department.

Senior Deputy County Attorney Abissi stated she was present in both roles, as there was not a
conflict.

Chairman FEllner disagreed that there was not a conflict with her serving in both postions.

Senior Deputy County Attorney Abissi stated in this particular issue there is no conflict with the
positions.

Chairman Ellner stated Senior Deputy County Attorney Abissi initiated this item and in the
interest of transparency, determined the documentation for this item was confidential and marked
it as so.

Senior Deputy County Attorney Abissi confirmed that to be correct. She stated the discussion of
the item must be done in Executive Session because it has to do with litigation that is pending.



Chairman Ellner questioned what can be discussed before having to go into Executive Session.
Senior Deputy County Attorney Abissi stated nothing because litigation is pending.

Chairman Ellner questioned whether the public could bé told what this is about.

Senior Deputy County Attorney Abissi stated the title gives the nature of the inquiry.

Chairman Ellner stated there has been a great deal of discussion regarding the need for
transparency. He stated there has been an article 78 filed against the County. He asked again if
there was anything Senior Deputy County Attorney Abissi could speak to in a public forum. He
stated there are members of the public and local Farmers present, and he believes they should
know what is going on.

Senior Deputy County Attorney Abissi stated the docket is public and anyone can search it. She
stated the stipulation, that is a settlement discussion, that is confidential and cannot be discussed

outside of an Executive Session.

Chairman Ellner stated it was unfortunate that the Legislature did not have a Legislative
Attorney to question her opinion on that.

Senior Deputy County Attorney Abissi stated she is present and can address that.

Chairman Ellner stated his disagreement with that. He stated the Legislature, and the Law
Department, have had problems in the past where they have been at odds. He stated the
Legislature has been without Legislative Counsel for almost a year. He stated way before this
meeting he would have liked to have had discussions and details set forth on this.

Senior Deputy County Attorney Abissi stated respectfully, statutorily the role of the County
Attorneys and the County Attorney’s office is the Attorney for the Legislature. She explained the
only time there is a need for a separate legislative counsel is in the event a County Attorney is
not available. She stated that she has made herself available to the Legislators regarding this
matter. She stated there is no conflict in the position of the County Law Department or the
Legislature in this matter.

Chairman Ellner stated he disagreed with her opinion and disagreed with the need for an
Executive Session. He stated he did not have a Legislative Attorney who could assist him with

that disagreement.



Senior Deputy County Attorney Abissi stated the purpose of a Legislative Counsel is to advise
on parliamentary procedure.

Chairman Ellner expressed his disagreement to that and he requested the minutes reflect that. He
stated that is what the Law Department is telling the Legislature. He stated traditionally the
Legislative Counsel has been way more than a parliamentarian. He stated until this year the
Legislature has always had a Legislative Counsel not a Legislative parliamentarian, he continued
to speak to this.

Legislator Brimingham stated that he was not going to necessarily disagree with anything that
has been said by either side here. He recognized he was not a member of the Physical Services
Committee, but he offered for the Committee’s consideration to stick with the matter in front of
the Committee. He stated he is prepared to speak to the item whether it be in the public forum or

Executive Session.

At 5:36p.m. Legislator Sayegh made a motion to go into Executive Session to discuss Pending
Litigation; Seconded by Chairman Ellner. All in favor.

At 6:30p.m. Chairman Ellner made a motion to come out of Executive Session; Seconded by
Legislator Sayegh. All in favor.

Chairman Ellner stated no action had been taken.

Chairman Ellner stated that he would like to give the members of the public an opportunity to
speak. He stated there would be no back and forth because of the pending litigation. He
requested anyone who would like to make a comment please come to the table with the

microphone.

Christine Nastasi, Chair of the P.C. Agricultural & Farmland Protection Board, stated the first
thing she would like to comment on is related to an email she was sent on June 3, 2025, from the
Director of Real Property Trish McLoughlin, which she read from. The email from Director
McLoughlin was requesting information regarding which farm was the Lepler Farm and what the
vote on that application for inclusion into the Agricultural District of Putnam County was,
because she had been invited to a meeting along with Commissioner Barbosa that the County
Executive was having with Mr. Lepler. She stated that she found it inappropriate and unethical
that no one, to her knowledge, from the Ag Board was invited to said meeting to discuss the
rejection of the application. She stated next she would address the public record of the lawsuit,

the verified petition.



Senior Deputy County Attorney Abissi cautioned the litigation cannot be discussed nor can the
Legislators comment on it.

Christine Nastasi, Chair of the P.C. Agricultural & Farmland Protection Board, stated within the
referenced document the original Reinmaker Farm is known to have produced some of the top
horses in the reining discipline nationally. She stated she does not know that to be a fact. She
stated she and others have been told that. She stated the original Reinmaker Farm located on
Joes Hill Road was sold on or around May 11, 2023. She stated there was an interim before
Reinmaker East had been formed and Reinmaker itself was dissolved on July 24, 2024. She
stated there was a time that Mr. Lepler did not own any property in the Agricultural District. She
continued to cite points from the petition document she had. She stated Reinmaker East was said
to be an Equine Breeding commercial operation. She stated there were no horses on the property
when the Agricultural Board toured the property. She stated also somewhere in the petition
document it states that Mr. Lepler owns 10 horses, she repeated they were not on the property.
She stated the horses needed to be on the land.

Senior Deputy County Attorney Abissi interjected and said that is in the statement of law, they
do not have to be on the land.

Christine Nastasi, Chair of the P.C. Agricultural & Farmland Protection Board, stated her
disagreement and she read from the law.

Senior Deputy County Attorney Abissi stated as an attorney she is qualified to interpret the
statute of the law that was read. She explained the operative word in that section of the law is
“proposed”.

Christine Nastasi, Chair of the P.C. Agricultural & Farmland Protection Board, stated in her
opinion based on the requirements of the Ag & Markets if you do not have horses on the
property and you do not have infrastructure and you do not have a farm. She stated the
projection of what will be is not what is considered. She stated the decision is based on what
exists right now. She continued to speak in her opinion of what would occur if recommendations
came from the P.C. Agricultural & Farmland Protection Board (The Board) based on projections.
She reviewed the timeline for the applications to be submitted in Putnam County, which is
between April 1% and April 30%. She stated The Board has 30 days to make their visits and have
a meeting to decide on what applications they will recommend and not recommend for inclusion
into the P.C. Agricultural District. She stated that The Board carried out its duties within the
mandated time and were in compliance. She concluded by stating she believes The Board, and
specifically her as Chair of The Board, should have been notified about this item being on the
meeting agenda, but to her knowledge they were not notified.



Scott Steiner, Attorney at Hogan, Rossi & Liguori Law Firm, stated he was representing the
Reinmaker East LLC Farm. He stated the purpose of tonight’s meeting is and was to consider a
proposed stipulation of settlement and proposed resolution that would resolve the matter. He
stated there is a robust record already concerning this matter. He stated Jamie Spillane from his
office has addressed this matter with the Legislature. He requested that the matter be held over
and a special meeting be scheduled as soon as possible so the August 28" deadline and have the
County Law Department’s representative and Legislative Counsel can be present so the
Legislature can obtain the advice it determines it needs, and this matter gets resolved.

Crystal Stowell, Putnam Valley stated she has spoken to the Legislature previously advocating
for a farm that submitted an application for inclusion into the Putnam County Agricultural
District (Ag District). She stated said farm is currently in operation producing fresh fruit and
local honey. She stated it is not a future project or under construction. She stated it was the
opinion of the County’s Agricultural & Farmland Protection Board that this farm was not yet
ready for inclusion into the Ag District this year. She stated the Legislature voted in alignment
with this advisory board. She stated the vote was not arbitrary or capricious because it was
consistent for all farms across the board. She stated a vote in favor to now approve Reinmaker
Farm East would disrupt this consistency. She stated it could also set a precedent that could be
perceived as yielding to pressure. She requested the Legislature consider the weight of this
decision and its implications to our community.

Jessica Jarrett, Town of Southeast and owner of Lobster Hill Farm, stated her farm was voted
against inclusion into the Ag District last year, 2024. She expressed that she did not believe that
vote to be accurate because they met all of the criteria requirements. She stated for the
Legislature to now vote in support of a farm that does not meet those requirements, and the Ag
Board did not recommend for inclusion, sets a terrible precedence for the whole process. She
stated when farmers are working to meet the requirements and are recommended by the Ag
Board, yet are not being voted into the Ag District, but there is a farm that did not meet the
requirements, was not recommended by the Ag Board and possibly is having a second look just
does not look good for everybody. She stated also last year during her effort to get into the Ag
District, she contacted County Executive Kevin Byrne’s office by placing many phone calls and
sending emails requesting a meeting with him. She stated she was ghosted by him. She stated
this is not on Mr. Lepler at all, but the fact that some people get meetings and some people do
not, that also does not reflect well on the County and the government.

Arielle Honovich, stated everyone present was aware of what she went through to get her farm
into the Ag District and the money that she spent to do so. She stated as Jessica Jarret said, she
also tried to contact County Executive Kevin Byrne multiple times and he never responded, even
to this date she has not heard from him.



Andrew Jarrett, Town of Southeast, owner of Lobster Hill Farm stated he will not repeat
everything that was already said. He stated he did want to make clear that no one doubts the fact
that Mr. Lepler will fulfill everything, as he has prior. He stated this has nothing to do with Mr.
Lepler. He stated one of the biggest concerns is when one of them reaches out to a public
official and gets ignored. He stated he is a citizen of the County and to be ignored is a slap in the
face. He stated he is aware of what Mr. Lepler has done for Putnam County and he appreciates
all that he has done. He stated clearly there is favoritism and that hurts as a citizen and it hurts
someone who is trying to start a small business here and provide a service to the community. He
stated for the County to set a precedence for the County Law Department to come to a settlement
when they did not want to last year with Ridge Ranch Farm in Patterson.

Scott Steiner, Attorney at Hogan, Rossi & Liguori Law Firm representing Reinmaker East LLC
Farm stated with respect to the prior speakers, of course agriculture is important. He stated his
client is not contesting or comparing themselves to any of these applicants. He stated with
respect to Reinmaker Farm East, Senior Deputy County Attorney Conrad Pasquale spoke to the
merits of Mr. Lepler’s application and they have addressed Mr. Lepler’s application ultimately in
litigation. He stated he believed the litigation speaks for itself and the merits of Mr. Lepler’s
application speaks for itself. He stated they are asking the Legislature to follow through by
seeking and following the advice of their own counsel. He stated in order for that to be done, if
this needs to be held over to a special meeting, on behalf of his client, he requested that be done.
He stated all of the grievances presented needs to be addressed by the Legislature, but the
meritorious application of another farm in Putnam County should not be made a scapegoat.

Brett Yarris, Town of Carmel Hamlet stated he agrees with Attorney Steiner that Reinmaker
Farm East should not be used as a scapegoat. He stated however, he does not believe that is
what is being done. He referenced the statements he made at the Full Meeting of the Legislature
in July. He stated that he implored the Legislature to follow the expert advice of the County’s Ag
Board. He stated it was a point referenced by Judge Grossman in Supreme Court when the
County Law Department was defeated in the Honovich Farm Lawsuit. He stated when the words
arbitrary and capricious are used, in his opinion, it is because applications of the law are not
being applied consistently. He stated in his opinion that has been going on for years. He stated
this year the Legislature did apply the law consistently, applied the criteria consistently and
applied the process consistently. He stated the County has broad authority when it comes to
inclusion in the Ag District, so long as it is being consistent and is following the law. He stated
when the Ag District first came into existence in Putnam County, in the early 2000s, one of the
intents was that it would be a reward for the hard working farmers and offer the farmers in the
Ag District protection from inconvenient or inappropriate intimidation from municipalities. He
stated, in his opinion, if the request in front of the committee is approved, it is saying you are
rewarded if you know the right people. He stated again, this is not a personal attack on Mr.
Lepler, whom he in fact has never met, and has only heard people speak very highly of him.



He stated in his opinion everybody has to be held to the same fair process. He stated regardless
of whether you are a working class family or you are a wealthy developer connected to the
political class, that is the point of due process under the law. He went over what the criteria is to
be accepted into the Ag District and that the criteria needs to be in place at the time of the site
visit from the Ag Board. He continued to speak to his opinion. He concluded his statements by
requesting the Legislature take the recommendation from the County’s Ag Board and make sure
the same laws, criteria and timelines are applied to everyone.

Christine Nastasi, Chair of the P.C. Agricultural & Farmland Protection Board, stated the
Reinmaker Farm East’s application was mentioned. She stated that there were a few items she
wanted to reference on said application. She stated the drawings that were provided with the
application did not have stalls on it. She referenced the items it did have. She stated there was
no stallion breeding contract, there was only a donor mare contract and an embryo rights
purchaser contract. She concluded by stating if additional information is wanted she would be
happy to provide it.

Cassandra Roth, from Patterson and Pawling Village, stated she was speaking as a member of
the public. She stated her agreement with all of the comments that have been stated by the
members of the public. She agreed that this year was a stark difference from the past four (4)
years of the County’s Ag District application and consideration process. She referenced the
Ridge Ranch Farm (The Honovich’s farm) lawsuit, and stated it was not their first option. She
stated they tried every avenue and were shut down. She stated they were not allowed to attend
Ag Board Meetings, there were no recordings available to view the meetings to learn what was
discussed in the meetings. She stated so much has changed in those areas for the better. She
stated they did not get the option to meet with anyone in the county government. She stated she
wrote many emails referencing many different topics. She stated her information was ignored.
She stated where things are currently with the Ag Board, in her opinion, is it has been corrected
and the Soil and Water Board is very close to being fully corrected. She stated she agrees with
the previous speakers, in her opinion the Legislature followed the process when they placed their
votes in July, related to the Ag District. She stated the New York State Agriculture and Markets
Department (Ag & Markets) has attorney that can be contacted by Putnam County’s attorneys to
clarify. She stated she has called them many times, and has not spoken to an attorney because
she is not an attorney. She stated the Legislature and the Law Office are the ones that have that
avenue. She suggested the Law Department do that before any settlement is decided. She stated
the 120 day clock is over. She stated per Ag & Markets the 120 day period is the full period to
submit any inclusions to the district. She stated August 5™ when the Commissioner certified all
of the parcels that Putnam County sent to the Ag & Markets. She stated the only thing now that
could be submitted to the Ag & Markets is a clerical error, which this would not be. She stated
the Ag & Markets says the Legislature has broad authority to run their program for the district as
they see fit and to choose criteria as they see fit, short of unconstitutional criteria. She stated she

7



learned all of this by contacting Ag & Markets. She stated before the Ridge Ranch lawsuit was
filed, they went to a “Meet the County Executive Coffee” event and were told County Executive
Byrne could not speak to them due to ongoing litigation. She too stated this is nothing against
Mr. Lepler. She stated Mr. Lepler’s application was denied, and so was Mr. Wulken’s, and in
her opinion, that was equitable. She continued to speak to the past four (4) years and the votes
that prevented Ridge Ranch from being included in the Ag District, which precipitated the
lawsuit they filed. She stated every farm does not have the ability and not every farm should ever
have to take up taking on local government to have a fair and equitable representation.

Senior Deputy County Attorney Abissi stated she wanted to make a comment about the
responsiveness of her office. She stated Ms. Roth commented that she did not receive a response.
She clarified that she responded to Ms. Roth personally and spoke to her and Mr. Jarrett. She
provided an interpretation of the section of the Ag & Markets Law that was read into the record
it specifically specified that farms could be either proposed or within the first or second year of
business. She stated the word “or” means exactly that. She stated the law does not prohibit
startups from admission. She stated there are a whole host of other qualifications and factors that
have to be considered. She stated she wanted to make it clear that the fact that a farm is a startup
alone is not a deniable factor on that sole factor alone.

Cassandra Roth, from Patterson and Pawling Village, stated she wanted to speak to her previous
points as she believes with these matters there could be a bit of conflation. She continued to
speak to her opinion.

Chairman Ellner stated after hearing all of the comments made, he would be making a motion to
Table this item.

Chairman Ellner made a motion to Table the Reconsideration/Approval/ Stipulation - Inclusion
of Parcel in the Putnam County Agricultural District (Reinmaker East LLC) Item; Seconded by
Legislator Sayegh. All in favor.

Item #5 — Approval/ Budgetary Amendment 25A067/ Adjust Capital Budget to Fund ADA
Compliant Ramp Project at County Office Building — Funded by a State CREST Grant
(Reso #282/2023)/ Finance Department

Commissioner of Planning, Development and Public Transportation Barbara Barosa explained
this is the project at the County Office Building (COB). She stated they are building the ADA
Compliant Ramp at the entrance of the COB, which was paid for with County funds. She stated
that she was able to secure CREST Grant funds in the amount of $50,000 to subsidize the costs
associated with said project. She stated this budgetary has been requested to adjust the capital
budget to fund the COB ADA Compliant Ramp.



Legislator Birmingham stated that he sees this is a grant administered by the Dormitory
Authority of the State of New York (DASNY). He questioned what the acronym CREST stands

for.

Commissioner of Planning, Development and Public Transportation Barbara Barosa stated
CREST stands for: Community Resiliency, Economic, Stability and Technology.

Brett Yarris, Town of Carmel questioned if there is a balance of funds left for more ADA
compliant projects.

Commissioner of Planning, Development and Public Transportation Barbara Barosa explained
this specific grant was applied and awarded for this specific project.

Commissioner of DPW Thomas Feighery stated there is a county budget designated annually for
such projects.

Chairman Ellner made a motion to Approve Budgetary Amendment 25A067/ Adjust Capital
Budget to Fund ADA Compliant Ramp Project at County Office Building — Funded by a State
CREST Grant; Seconded by Legislator Sayegh. All in favor.

Item #6 - Approval to Create - Formulate/ Putnam County’s Proposed Vulnerability
Assessment and Climate Adaptation Plan/ Commissioner Planning, Development and
Public Transportation Barbara Barosa

Commissioner of Planning, Development and Public Transportation Barbara Barosa stated
Putnam County Planning Department was approached by the Hudson Valley Regional Council.
She explained they have grant funding available to help municipalities and Counties put together
a Vulnerability Assessment and Climate Adaptation Plan. She stated they offered to put it
together with the Planning Department Staff, and it would be done free of charge. She stated it
would basically take the County’s Hazard Mitigation plan and make more recommendations to
become more climate resilient.

Chairman Ellner requested clarification that the request was to approve the creation of said plan.
He stated Putnam County is currently bronze certified. He stated this is a matter that Legislator
Montgomery has been an advocate for and leading the charge on.

Commissioner of Planning, Development and Public Transportation Barbara Barosa stated this is
a requirement if Putnam County wants to pursue silver.

Legislator Sayegh stated she was going to ask that question. She requested confirmation that by
doing this the County will be increasing their chances of getting to the next step in the Climate
Smart program.



Commissioner of Planning, Development and Public Transportation Barbara Barosa confirmed
that to be correct.

Legislator Montgomery stated her appreciation for Planning Assistant Ilona Campo for all of the
time and work she has put into this. She stated this is timely, as we are approaching the five (5)
years when the Hazard Mitigation Plan and all of this will coincide, it is great timing.

Chairman Ellner made a motion to Approve Create - Formulate/ Putnam County’s Proposed
Vulnerability Assessment and Climate Adaptation Plan; Seconded by Legislator Sayegh. All in
favor.

Item #7 — Approval/ Grant Application/ State and Municipal (SAM) Facilities Grant
Program- Through the State of New York and the Office of Senator Harckham/ Putnam
County Veterans Memorial Park Accessible/ Inclusive Playground/ Commissioner
Planning, Development and Public Transportation Barbara Barosa

Commissioner Planning, Development and Public Transportation Barbara Barosa stated the
County was notified that there is available funding. She stated that she has worked with the
Department of Public Works (DPW) and the Office of People with Disabilities to identify the
existing playground at the Veterans Memorial Park as being a playground that is in need of an
upgrade and it would become an accessible and inclusive sensory playground. She stated that
Senator Harckham’s office contacted the County informing us that $100,000 is available for this
project.

Legislator Sayegh questioned whether this is to improve the existing playground or to add
another one.

Commissioner Planning, Development and Public Transportation Barbara Barosa stated the
funds would be used to improve the existing playground.

Chairman Ellner made a motion to Approve The Grant Application/ State and Municipal (SAM)
Facilities Grant Program- Through the State of New York and the Office of Senator Harckham,;
Seconded by Legislator Sayegh. All in favor.

Item #8 - Approval/ Conveyance of a Certain County Property to the Village of Cold
Spring Pursuant to Chapter 31 of the Putnam County Code/ Law Department

Chairman Fllner stated that he was notified that Mayor of Cold Spring Mayor Foley was not
available to attend this meeting, and there would be Andrew Hall, Cold Spring Trustee member

present.

Andrew Hall, Cold Spring Trustee stated this has to do with improvements to the drainage
system in Cold Spring. He explained a portion of the drainage needs to run beneath the roadway
just where Fair Street meets the County Road, at the edge of the Village of Cold Spring. He
stated as he understands it that land is under the ownership of the County.

10



Legislator Montgomery stated this is a tiny parcel of land that the County owns and this
conveyance is needed so the Village can do their stormwater repair. She stated as a side note
there is another County parcel of land that she is hoping to see come before the Legislature soon.
She explained again there would be a conveyance of a County parcel to the Village of Cold
Spring, because it is part of some sidewalk issues that the Village is trying to address. She
clarified the matter and the request that is in front of this committee currently would allow the
Village of Cold Spring to get their work done related to the stormwater repair.

Commissioner of DPW Thomas Feighery stated there are two (2) separate parcels. He stated the
outflow will be where the maintenance part is the other part is the roadway piece, which is .16
miles of Fair Street in Cold Spring. He stated that part will take longer. He stated the Law
Department has been handling this conveyance. He stated the secondary piece of property of the
roadway, will be addressed at a later date.

Andrew Hall, Cold Spring Trustee questioned how long this process would take place.
Chairman Ellner stated approximately 30-45 days.

Legislator Montgomery explained after this matter is approved in committee it will then be on
the Full Meeting agenda, September 2, 2025, for a vote by the Full Legislature.

Andrew Hall, Cold Spring Trustee, expressed his appreciation.

Chairman Ellner made a motion to Approve The Conveyance of a Certain County Property to the
Village of Cold Spring Pursuant to Chapter 31 of the Putnam County Code; Seconded by
Legislator Sayegh. All in favor.

Item #9 — Other Business - None
Item #10 — Adjournment

There being no further business, at 7:20 P.M., Chairman Ellner made a motion to adjourn;
seconded by Legislator Sayegh. All in favor.

Respectfully submitted by Deputy Clerk Diane Trabulsy.

11



THE PUTNAM COUNTY LEGISLATURE
40 Gleneida Avenue
Carmel, New York 10512
(845) 808-1020 Fax (845) 808-1933

Nancy Montgomery Dist. 1
William Gouldman Dist. 2
Amy E. Sayegh Chairwoman Toni E. Addonizio Dist. 3
Greg E. Ellner Deputy Chair Laura E. Russo Dist. 4
Diane Schonfeld Clerk Greg E. Ellner Dist. 5
Paul E. Jonke Dist. 6
Daniel G. Birmingham Dist. 7
Amy E. Sayegh Dist. 8
Erin L. Crowley Dist. 9
AGENDA
PHYSICAL SERVICES COMMITTEE
TO BE HELD IN ROOM 318
PUTNAM COUNTY OFFICE BUILDING
CARMEL, NEW YORK 10512

(Chairman Ellner and Legislators Crowley & Jonke)

Wednesday 5:30p.m. __August 20, 2025
(The Special Full Mtg. Will Immediately Follow)

. Pledge of Allegiance

. Roll Call

. Acceptance/ Physical Services Meeting Minutes/ Junel0, 16 & July 17, 2025

. Reconsideration/Approval/ Stipulation - Inclusion of Parcel in the Putnam County
Agricultural District/ Senior Deputy County Attorney Heather Abissi

. Approval/ Budgetary Amendment 25A067/ Adjust Capital Budget to Fund ADA
Compliant Ramp Project at County Office Building — Funded by a State CREST Grant
(Reso #282/2023)/ Finance Department

. Approval to Create - Formulate/ Putnam County’s Proposed Vulnerability Assessment and
Climate Adaptation Plan/ Commissioner Planning, Development and Public
Transportation Barbara Barosa



7. Approval/ Grant Application/ State and Municipal (SAM) Facilities Grant Program-
Through the State of New York and the Office of Senator Harckham/ Putnam County
Veterans Memorial Park Accessible/ Inclusive Playground/ Commissioner Planning,
Development and Public Transportation Barbara Barosa

8. Approval/ Conveyance of a Certain County Property to the Village of Cold Spring
Pursuant to Chapter 31 of the Putnam County Code/ Law Department

9. Other Business

10. Adjournment



Phy ¢ /023”@5 i
—#2,

SPECIAL - PHYSICAL SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING
40 Gleneida Avenue Room #318
Carmel, NY 10512

Committee Members: Chairman Ellner, Legislators Crowley & Jonke

Monday August 25, 2025
(Immediately Followed the 5:30p.m.: Eco Dev, Rules & Audit Mtgs. Special Full followed)

The meeting was called to order at 7:26p.m. by Chairman Ellner who led in the Pledge of
Allegiance. Upon roll call, Legislators Crowley, Jonke and Chairman Ellner were present.

Item #3 — Discussion/ Reconsideration/ Approval Stipulation — Inclusion of Parcel
“Reinmaker Farm East LL.C” in the Putnam County Agricultural District/ Senior Deputy
County Attorney Heather Abissi (Tabled at the 8-20-25 Phys Sves Mtg)

Senior Deputy County Attorney Heather Abissi stated this matter was discussed rather
extensively at the August 20® Physical Services Meeting. She stated if there are additional
questions they will need to be addressed in Executive Session.

Chairman Ellner stated at the start of the August 20" meeting he questioned if Attorney Abissi
was functioning as Legislative Attorney or as the County Law Department Attorney, and her
answer was both.

Senior Deputy County Attorney Heather Abissi confirmed that was correct. She stated at the
August 20" meeting there was no other Attorney present from the County Law Department. She
stated at tonight’s meeting First Deputy County Attorney John Cherico from the County Law
Department is present and represents the County Law Department and she is functioning as the
Legislative Attorney.

Chairman Ellner stated he would begin by reading an excerpt from the Physical Services
Meeting of June 16, 2025:

Chairman Ellner questioned Senior Deputy County Attorney Pasquale about start ups.
Senior Deputy County Attorney Pasquale stated it is a subjective standard. He stated the
Legislature can discuss and determine whether they believe the property meets the standard of

what they would consider a legitimate start up.

Chairman Ellner questioned whether any start up is eligible for inclusion into the district
regardless of how far along they are in terms of construction.

Senior Deputy County Attorney Pasquale stated that is correct and it is up to the discretion of

the Legislature.
Legislator Sayegh questioned when the LLC was formed for Reinmaker Farm East.

1|Page



Jamie Spillane, from Hogan, Rossi and Liguori Attorneys at Law, representing Reinmaker Farm
East LLC stated it was formed when the property was acquired about 1.5 to 2 years ago. She
stated the principal is the same as the prior, Reinmaker LLC.

At 7:31p.m. Chairman Ellner made a motion to go into Executive Session to discuss Pending
Litigation; Seconded by Legislator Crowley. All in favor.

At 8:05p.m. Chairman Ellner made a motion to come out of Executive Session; Seconded by
Legislator Jonke. All in favor.

Chairman Ellner stated there was no action taken in Executive Session. He requested if any
members of the public had any comments.

Christine Nastasi, Chair of the P.C. Agricultural & Farmland Protection Board, stated there was
not much more that she wanted to add to this matter, since speaking to this matter at the August
20" meeting. She stated for the purpose of the record, no one from the Ag Board was notified of
this meeting. She stated comments were made during the discussion of an earlier Committee
Meeting discussion that the Legislators spoke to the importance of fairness, continuity,
transparency and treating everyone the same. She stated that she hopes that everything that
comes before the Legislature is treated in that way. She reiterated and spoke to an email that she
received on Monday, July 2, 2025, at 7:30p.m. from the Director of Real Property Patricia
McLoughlin, and she read the email into the record. In summary the email was asking what her
(Director of Real Property Patricia McLoughlin) vote was on the Lepler property because
Director McLoughlin was asked to attend a meeting that Mr. Lepler was having with County
Executive Byrne in the morning along with Commissioner of Planning, Development and Public
Transportation Barbara Barosa. She stated in her opinion it was unethical of the County
Executive to have that meeting. She stated that she is aware that several other Farm owners in
the past have requested meetings with the County Executive and they were denied. She
continued to speak to the different categories of horse boarding farms citing Section 3010of the
Agriculture and Markets Law, which is what the Ag Board members followed in their review of
the applications. She spoke to her interpretation of what the term “Start Up” means and what she
believes the State’s purpose is for that term.

Legislator Sayegh requested that the Law Department provide their interpretation of the term
“Start Up” as it is used in the Agricultural and Markets Law. She questioned specifically could
they be included in the Ag District on day 1.

Senior Deputy County Attorney Heather Abissi stated it can be a proposal or up to two (2) years
of operation. She stated at any point during those two (2) years a farm could become compliant.
She stated for Equine operations there is a one (1) year limit to get the required number of horses
if your required type of Equine operation requires a specific number of horses. She stated other
than that all the other requirements have up to two (2) years to become fully compliant, that is
the definition of a “Start Up”. She explained that is why the statue has the wording “proposed or
up to two (2) years in operation”.

2|Page



Legislator Sayegh stated she thought there was a two (2) year requirement, and an Equine Farm
had to have horses on the property.

Senior Deputy County Attorney Heather Abissi stated that was a misunderstanding.

Legislator Sayegh requested confirmation that is the reason why this request for approval has
been submitted to the Legislature and Attorney Abissi’s recommendation is to make that right.

Senior Deputy County Attorney Heather Abissi stated that it was correct.

Crystal Stowell, Putnam Valley stated she wanted to express her concern about another Special
Meeting about a matter that was tabled just five (5) days ago. She stated while other Farms have
waited months to get on the Agenda it appears one individual has been given exceptional access
to Public Officials and priority in scheduling Special Meetings. She stated at the last meeting the
Legislature heard from members of the Farming Community, including herself, cautioning the
Legislature from starting a dangerous precedent. She stated a yes vote tonight will be perceived
as the Legislature yielding to pressure. She stated she fully supports “Start Up” Farms being
included in the Ag District and has spoken to that many times. She stated she believes the
integrity of the process is more important than anyone (1) individual. She stated she believes the
Legislature this year has followed the letter and intent of the law voting in alignment with the
recommendations of the Ag Board. She continued to speak to her hope that the Legislature will
not vote in favor of this matter. She stated that the Commissioner of the State Agricultural and
Markets has the final authority on whether a Farm is approved for inclusion, regardless of
whether the Legislature approves it. She stated it is her opinion that this Farm will not be
approved by the Commissioner. She stated that she believes the County needs to make it a
priority to amend Resolution #139 of 2007 - Agriculture District Inclusion Criteria.

Legislator Jonke stated it was his opinion that the last speaker was completely out of line. He
stated the speaker spoke to integrity and special meetings, the meeting tonight was at the result
of a Lawsuit. He stated the Legislature is brought in to address the matter of the Lawsuit.

Andrew Wulken, Resident Putnam Valley, stated he had not planned to speak but felt compelled
to. He stated that we all know why we are here, it’s not because of the Lawsuit, it is because of
who it is. He stated that he was told that there would be votes against his Ag District Application
for Clara Patunga Farm because some Legislator(s) did not like his personality.

Cassandra Roth, Patterson and Pawling, spoke to past incidents related to a previous Lawsuit
(Honovich vs County of Putnam). She stated there needs to be continuity and consistency with
this process. She stated that would avoid people from being upset. She stated she does wish the
Legislature was given the time to amend Resolution #139 of 2007.

Legislator Jonke made a motion to Approve Stipulation — Inclusion of Parcel Reinmaker Farm
East LLC into the Putnam County Agricultural District; Seconded by Legislator Crowley.
Roll Call Vote:

Two - Ayes

One - Nay Chairman Ellner

3|Page



Motion Carried
Item #4 - Adjournment

There being no further business at 8:27 P.M. Chairman Ellner made a motion to adjourn;
Seconded by Legislator Jonke. All in favor.

Respectfully submitted by Deputy Clerk Diane Trabulsy.

4|Page



THE PUTNAM COUNTY LEGISLATURE
40 Gleneida Avenue
Carmel, New York 10512
(845) 808-1020 Fax (845) 808-1933

Nancy Montgomery Dist. 1
William Gouldman Dist. 2
Amy E. Sayegh Chairwoman Toni E. Addonizio Dist. 3
Greg E. Ellner Deputy Chair Laura E. Russo Dist. 4
Diane Schonfeld Clerk Greg E. Ellner Dist. 5
Paul E. Jonke Dist. 6
Daniel G. Birmingham Dist. 7
Amy E. Sayegh Dist. 8
Erin L. Crowley Dist. 9
AGENDA
-SPECIAL-
PHYSICAL SERVICES COMMITTEE
TO BE HELD IN ROOM 318
PUTNAM COUNTY OFFICE BUILDING
CARMEL, NEW YORK 10512

(Chairman Ellner and Legislators Crowley & Jonke)

Monday August 25, 2025
(To Immediately Follow the 5:30pm: Eco Dev, Rules & Audit Mtgs. A Special Full Mtg. to Follow)

1. Pledge of Allegiance

2. Roll Call

3. Reconsideration/Approval/ Stipulation - Inclusion of Parcel “Reinmaker Farm East LLC”
in the Putnam County Agricultural District/ Senior Deputy County Attorney Heather
Abissi (Tabled at the 8-20-25 Phys Svcs Mtg) .

4. Adjournment



e :! N o TN

i
i

KEVIN M. BYRNE ” ?L

PUTNAM COUNTY EXECUTIVE

WILLIAM J. CARLIN, Jr. CPA
Commissioner Of Finance

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE

MEMORANDUM

To: Diane Schonfeld, Legislative Clerk
From: Sheila M. Barrett, First Deputy Commissioner of Finance 33(@

Re: Budgetary Amendment - 25A079

Date: August 28, 2025

At the request of the Commissioner of Finance, the following budgetary transfer is
required.

GENERAL FUND
Increase Appropriations:

10990100 59020 Transfer to Capital Fund 150,000
10199000 54980 Contingency 137,461
287,461

Increase Revenues:
10802000 449895 UPWP 2025/26- Federal Aid 287,461

CAPITAL FUND
Increase Appropriations:
55997000 53000 52308 UPWP - Capital Expenditures 150,000

Increase Revenues:
55997000 428601 52308 UPWP 2025/26- Federal Aid 150,000

Fiscal Impact - 2025 - $ (137,461)
Fiscal Impact - 2026 - $ 0

This Resolution was requested by the Commissioner of Planning for UPWP 2025/2026
formula Funding.

Approved:

Kevin M. Byrne
County Executive



Putnam County
Putnam County Public Transit System Study

Description and Objectives

This proposed study will examine existing public transportation services in Putnam
County and develop strategies to improve and expand service and recommend service options
where current service is either limited or not available.

This will entail the following:

¢ An in-depth demographic survey of current ridership in order to better understand the
transit needs of the county, with an emphasis on vulnerable populations

e An assessment of the current fixed-route network and planned demand-response
Microtransit service aimed at expanding service, increasing ridership and getting the most
out of the relationship between the two service types

e An evaluation of existing gaps, both large and small, in the county’s transit system and
developing alternatives on how to fill them

e An assessment of the system’s current status with regard to transit-related technologies
such as live GTFS, interactive mapping and bus tracking and cashless fares and ticketing

e An inventory of current bus stops, bus stop amenities, shelters and signage with the goal
of producing a bus stop planning, design and placement guidelines document.

The ultimate goal will be to produce a set of recommendations informed by analysis of

the County’s transit needs that will improve amenities, rider experience, promote efficiency and
increase service consumption.

Supported Plan Goals:

¢ SAFETY AND SECURITY

; RESILIENCY




Activities

1. Conduct demographic survey of existing ridership to better understand county’s transit

needs

2. Study current fixed-route network and investigate feasibility/cost-effectiveness of various
changes and/or improvements and develop recommendations

3. Study the county transit system’s current level of integration with existing technologies to
facilitate use of the system and improve upon rider experience.

4. Develop a set of alternatives for meeting the transit needs of communities in Putnam
County which are currently underserved or not served at all.

5. Produce bus-stop planning, design and placement guidelines document

Deliverables

1. Draft report: Putnam County Public Transit System Study.
2. Final report: Putnam County Public Transit System Study (SFY2025-2026:Q4).

Start Date: SFY2025-2026:Q1

End Date: SFY2025-2026:Q4

Total Funds Requested: $180,935
New FHWA/FTA Funds: $150,000
Previously Programmed Funds: $0
Reason for Unspent Funds: N/A
Related Professional Services Contracts: $150,000

Consultant will support all aspects of this study.




(4%4

9ZE'60vS 0% 9zZE'60VS 000'0028 92£'602$ 0$ 9ZE'602$ Ajuno) weuing (ejog
SE6'0879 03 SE6'08TS 000°0STS SE6'0ES 0$ SE6'DES uieidoug Aieuogiaiasig
8L0'96% 0$ 810969 0% 8.0°96% 0% 8£0'96% weidolq Juswasoldu] uoperiodsuer)
112'201% 0% 12’2018 000°05% 112258 0% 144 Suiuueld uojjeliodsuel | a8uey-8uo]
€€6'TS 0$ £€6'1S 05 £E6'TS [ . £E6'TS Suluueld anjsuayarduio) pue Juawdo|aAsg [elauss
691'82$ 0% 691'82S 0% 691°82$ 0% 691'829% uoensIuIWpY pue ioddng wiesdolgd
0$ 0$ 0$ 0% 0$ 0% 0% S3NIANDY BujuUeld S22 21a]duio)
Runo) Wenjd

87R'9EZ'SS 000°ELZS 878'605's$ 005'985'T$ 8ZE'€26'ES 008'TS 8Z5'TZ6ES uopeiodsuely Jo “3dad JAN fe3oL
0€50S0'€$ 000°ELT$ 0£5'€2E'ES 005'T95% 0£079L'2S 0% 0E0'292'2% weJBosd Aleuonalssig
[0 24 0s 267" 9rvs 0s 6b'9vvs 0$ 69"9%vS weidosd wawaaoldwi] uoneysodsues)
89L'BTY'TS 0% 892°82V'TS 000'520'T$ 89 €0V 008'T$ 896'T0VS Sujuue|d uoiertadsues] aduey-8uoT
¥00'vS 0% 00" 0$ +#00'pS 0% $00'pS 3ujuuelg-saisusyardwog pue juawdojarag [erauss
YED'LOES 0% YEQ'L0ES 05 YEO'LOES 0s VEO'L0ES uojiess|ujwpy pue Joddng wesdoud
BEL'BBES 0$ 6E4'86ES 0% 6EL'BEES 0s 6£2'86ES sajiAnaY Bujuueld s)3as ajajduiod
uoljeyrodsuel] joydaq JAN

£94'056'T$ 6SEBYTTS 9Z1'660'c$ 000°‘0b$ 9Z1'650'€$ Z61'88% VEG'0L6TS Sujuueid AnD 30 3dad DAN er0)
LL9°L5T'TS 6SE'BYT'TS 9E0'90E'Z$ 000°0v$ 9€0'992'2$ va1'89S 7/8'L6T'T8 Wweidold Aleuona.dsig
BET'STIS 0% BET'STLS 03 9ET'52TS 0002$ BET'ETTS . weJSold Juswarosdw] uopersodsuel)
€EZ'8DES 0$ £€2'80ES 0$ €E2'BOES 820'Y1% S0T'Y6ZS Suiuue|d uopeliodsuel) aduey-3uol
SpS'Z01$ 0$ sys'zots [ SP§201$ 000'2$ S%5'001$ 8ujuue)g aAisuayaidwo) pue uswdojaraq [eausn
[ZATT T 0$ [ZAVAIAS 0% vLT'2528 000'2$ vLT'S5ZS Uol3eNsiuiWpY pue Poddns wesdosd
s 0% 0s s 0% 08 0% $811IA110Y Bujuue)d 5333.11S 1vjdwo)

555 §1S02 3DIAYIS

ddW vid SHY3A HOW NI wiol Y YIHLO+ 44VIS  TYNOSHAd S1SOD 44V1S

71d YMHA MIN GIWIANVYHSOHd INVLINSNOD NON

1ewt| seet L



11€3-00 KIInSURD 000°E6S
133615 1IN - SUNY

000'52$§ 0 pubueya

{iwis aze’stshwenso3 poo'ngs Ao
ATNLS ALIISYTS NOUISUIIND - 1dD

BOEZS'DO0ES DOGLEESS TUN0Y. {1EI3000'5) UTINSUYD COOVILS

193084 ONIINAOD 3V - 14D

$1I370¥d NOILIATIOD YLVO dMdN

[Jieve Tag'215) e Co0'00ZS
1537044 ININIDYNYIV INIWINYS HYGIT SEHTI03

09°0FZS  OVIIERES  00/1'ESSS
s oosazes vz0z utpreq
OYEESS  DOOOETES ez wpimd
DUSHOLEL  9029ELS ez mmnd
0IOUISL  vEGEELLES a0z W pred
wswite orowt 0TS narawsy yiog
aooonoazs
wsETS
e votivly  OOSELTRS 00OR'T TeBEZE AUE  v2/6e/e N
9v8 VIOLtS  COSEBENSS OOSU'E 192626 AUy YZ/VE/L UL
2082 VIO 0000II11S  0ODEL'S EVBYLG AUt E2/TET i
e viou/e/t  OOOEREZIS TERIN'SE 707906 AU EZ/LE/IY N
€292 viorfv/t  \EwE0NS onosL's 61668 AUl E2/LE/OL A0
€9 viot/lt  1EBEsNS oostz T6BGER AUl SZ/E/6 I
s02r VIOT/SU/E  TETEUINS  GIUE'EE GSeaR AU E2/1E/R N
€9 veoz/vt  00TMSERIS BOEY wor29RAU EZ/OE/ATIN VL/LE/E X
ce0Rs  23eRReET sereaney Bwoouiug sayey
VE/ER0T 0t pieenia) paAne> ‘FOEZS'00DES QUOLGESS 1033y _HTOT/EZDT UTLIN0NY ILWAN
asi'ses T AATRE S WAN e - -
o8 of . OTSOTTDIS oyvee'es
0562 POOL SuE'EZS aaweieq t5vs B0r/sz/s 0SS TS
W ads 625 war/izfy  03QTRTYIS OrLL'T
stvass 1aesue)) 0915 QOUEUy  0OSEIINIS  SEYE
vagy BOT/SUE  REVIETVIS TOSILY
ey BOT/SUZ GDOEE'ISTS OO'SIEY €e/1E/E Oy
wmees  searsvie ooe 000SES 3 ROUSHZ  00SOL9S1S 00SEL'ER o rzzozer Dunnow siawo)
seveEs  Sor/e/t oposEs Se9osal TOTZUDYS 00020301 1UN0DY  £207/220Z LOUICITY JIWAN  DAD'DIPS
/(SEAES  VIOL/SfL STSHUT  SLEGEL
usewes Az sefse/e on wesrtsr
145} SR8z woz/etly ECEC-
ovess'sr L2 aotjee/e  svesres  ogoEDTY .
T Ee worjor/e  soTsver  werrvos
Stvses  worfsfv 0DOSEY  DOOBYL oveaE Ml vr/ezfenap an woz/sft cosererl  0OGSSOl
oveves  vzar/efe cooEEr  oo'stye SLIIREML V/9L/T O 60c1 wotsfts  avEOIEl vty
BbEhETS: porepnn €rsvEs  veor/sh CoSSLVT 0OSEME BRELE M1 EZ/GLITL PHO naE \zoz/az/on  veIGYYEL  STOOTZE
95955'EL Gvobes  wor/Eh ooesZAt  05I8ST DE9/LE 401 CL/LI/1E M senozs [20L/a/0F  ODZEE'NLL  OSLEREL
00'v6- piepInhRy WS ovoees  czor/e/er oqeeRor  nsTeVil WSSLE ML) EZ/0RJOL nat srwazs ot/ie/R OSELESRE  OSTIBT
0050525, esifs  viaz/ez/fa wwEVElS  STEIRTIZ c1mtge e vz/az/arap iuiges  ezor/e/n opoEEZE  noDAKL ORLE M1 Ez/ezf6 P 59615 OO/ OOTIVAL  ooaus
oauss WE9ES  VIOZRI/L  BILITEIS  DSSORR BzeAE AN VZ/E/S MLy e wsmmn  wI/te/edg 59615 TOTNE/L  00Z89'RZ  OOSEETE  1EVSEI9E wan
vozees  vIoz/z/e no'wes aoevze 2svsaur veiae/s o OEEoEs  raZALE/S  BUSLURUS  0OERZ'S BLLBE AN v2/6T/b MY 149) WieTs wotfe/i OD/IONOE  tEe0svs  OOGOADOT + P 13pt0 ung snanms
906SES  VIOXTI/L  GOESEES  DSEGO'S ovsovs AUt pe/TE/s Ml SI09ES  LLOL/OT/S  BVISEESS  SIBLI SovSEEA  E/zz/e onn steTs WO/ GEMISSE  00UMLS  YEwsTels vV vz Senaadaa o)
soeats  veoz/el/r  oSeEUES  0SEOLT €eeesav ve/ar/y i SIUSES  WIOU/Sfv  ve'SESYSS UMY ovEgEaY  wzfer/t i owave'ze
VOESES  VIOZ/OL/S  00'9RLTIS  GODZO'99 1ERZS AU K2/6T/E M BIVBUESS ooy DU STLRIEE
SBESES  VIOU/S/v  D0'9IT'LLS  DOWER'ST EEEZSAUL bT/EZ/L EISHES  BIOL/SAZ  BIDA'GSS  1ESUEGT S/BGLE AV EL/6GT/TT A ODEESTL  USEW'T £2/te/e dxy BNy teez/e/e  SEVOEtr  TWOMELOT avan
el eetenr vret 40y waHS GisEmEL W 5| OS9G DSIORE werneve wenet o) sats WOL/U/E  BRIOVIR 0BT WISUORLS  SeRNOwSY et Bungnsva s
wp3  pedown  swoey wads g o4 woNvoy  uopueA | WD  plegewg ooy 1usds g0 os powoy  mpusa | w3 pled e wwomg usds o4 neaved  sopusa wvevy  pmgimo owoeg wsds sousio o4 ey sopun



=.;_kj\4,g6'96

WILLIAM J. CARLIN, Jr. CPA KEVIN M. BYRNE
Commissioner Of Finance PUTNAM COUNTY EXECUTIVE
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE
MEMORANDUM .
=3
P

B

To: Diane Schonfeld, Legislative Clerk %
From: William J. Carlin, Jr., Interim Commissioner of Finance fw g
s o
Re: Budgetary Amendment - 25A088 o
ro
Date: September 13, 2025 wr
At the request of the Commissioner of Finance, the following budgetary
amendment is required.
CAPITAL FUND:
Increase Estimated Appropriations:
10874500 54652 Tree Program 8,000
Increase Estimated Revenues:
8,000

10874500 439106 Conservation Project

Fiscal Impact-2025- $0
Fiscal impact - 2026 - $ 0

This Resolution is required to fund the Cornell Cooperative Extension Tree Seedling
Program, utilizing Part C SWCD funds as approved by the enclosed resolution of the
Putnam County Soil and Water Conservation District.

Approved : ;
Kevin M, Byrne, County Executive




Resolution No. ﬁﬁ.&_ of 20
of the Putnam County Soil and Water Conservation District
Appraval of Funding for Comnell Cooperative Extension Seedling Sale Program

WHEREAS, Cornell Cooperative Extension of Putnam County has requested $8,000in
support of its annual Tree and Shrub Seedling Sale; and

WHEREAS, the program directly advances the rnission of the Putnam County Soil &
Water Conservation District [District™) by promoting natural resource consenation,
environmental education, and cormunity engagermnent, and

WHEREAS, the Seedling Sale has eliminated non-native and invasive plant offerings,
prioritizing native bare-root trees and shrubs, disease-resistant frult trees, wildflowers,
ferns, and habitat-supporting products such as bird nest boxes sourced from New
York State businesses; and :

WHEREAS, the program's implementation requires significant coordination, volunteer
engagement, and program support costs, including wholesale erdering, e-commuerce
hosting, outreach and advertising, educstional marerial creation, repackaging, and
distribution; and

WH&R!—?AS the District recognizes the value of this program In providing sffordable
conservation plant materials to the public, advancing envirorymental steeargdship, andg
strengthening educational and outreach partnerships between the Districr and
Corneil Cooperative Extension;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE 1T RESOLVED, that the Putnam County Soil & Water
Conservation District Board of Directors hereby approves $8,000 in funding 1o support
the 2025 Tree and Shrub Seedling Sale, to be administered in collaboration with
Carnell Cooperative Extension of Putnarm County.

Adopted thistayof , 19,5
Putnam County Soll & Water Conservation nmm

Chairperson

Vice Chatrperson




Diane Schonfeld

N
A

From:

Sent:

To:

Cc:

Subject:
Attachments:

Diane,

Joseph Bellucci —
Thursday, September 11, 2025 10:27 AM

Diane Schonfeld

Michele Alfano-Sharkey; William Carlin; Thomas Feighery

2024- 2025 Snow & Ice Reimbursement

S&l 24-25 Resolution Draft.docx; Amendment B 2024-2025 S&I Agreement.pdf

Please see the attached draft resolution and supporting document for the 24-25 NYSDOT Snow and Ice Agreement
reimbursement for this month’s Physical Services Meeting.

Thankyou,

Joe

Joseph D. Bellucci

Deputy Commissioner e Department of Public Works

PHONE | 845.878.6331 Ext. 40174 o CELL| 845.742.4085 e WEBSITE | Department of Public
Works (DPW) ~ Putnam County, New York (putnamcountyny.com)

PUTNAM COUNTY GOVERNMENT, NEW YORK




Pl - i

APPROVAL/ACCEPTANCE OF AMENDMENT B FOR 2024-2025 SNOW AND ICE AGREEMENT WITH
NEW YORK STATE

WHEREAS, by Resolution #318 of 2019, the Putnam County Legislature approved the Agreement
with the State of New York for Snow and Ice Removal; and

WHEREAS, under the terms of the Agreement, the County is responsible for clearing snow and ice
from State Highways as designated by the Commissioner of Transportation of the State of New York
(the Commissioner”); and

WHEREAS, the Agreement was for a five year period commencing July 1, 2019 and was embodied in
New York State Contract # D014871; and

WHEREAS, in order to more accurately reflect the 2024-2025 winter season’s expenditures, an
amendment to this Agreement (“Amendment B”) has been proposed for said winter season based
on revised estimated expenditures; and

WHEREAS, approval and acceptance of Amendment B will allow the processing of said
reimbursement by New York State to Putnam County; now therefore be it

RESOLVED, that the Putnam County Legislature authorizes the County Executive to execute
Amendment B, a copy of which is attached hereto.



SUPPL S&J (11/18) Supplemental Agreement Cover for Snow & lce Agreements
Contract No: _D014871

Supplemental Agreement No:
Date Prepared:

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT No. ___ to Contract No. ___D014871

This Supplemental Agreement is by and between:

The New York State Department of Transportation ("NYSDOT"), having its
principal office at 50 Wolf Road, Albany, NY 12232, on behalf of New York State
("State™); and the

PUTNAM COUNTY ("Municipality")

Acting by and through the

This amends the existing Municipal Snow and ice Agreement between the parties

in the following respects only (Check all that apply):

[] Amending the contract end date ONLY

D Amending the number of lane miles/specific roads cover under
Paragraphs 7 and 9 of the Original Agreement (revised m?p attached)

Amending the estimated expenditure for the? )gs;ason by:

1 adding funding due to exceeding the Estimated Expenditure for
the above-mentioned season (required Amendment B attached with

a copy of the final snow & ice voucher, if applicable)

’ adding funding to adjust the Estimated Expenditure to account for
increases in labor, materials, equipment, and/or overall costs, per the
terms in Paragraphs 9 and 10 in the Original Agreement (Adjustment
Worksheets and Municipal Resolution attached)
X Extending the Agreement for an additional 5-Year period (Extension No.

of a maximum of 3

D Other:




SUPPLS&I (11/18) Supplemental Agreement Cover for Snow & Ice Agreements
Contract No:__D014871

Supplemental Agreement No:
Date Prepared:

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized

officials as of the date first above written.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK MURNCIPALITY:
B e Q/

{

By:
For Commissioner of Transportation Print Nam&j@i At S ’é g;,ﬁ
Date: Title: e—
STATE OF NEW YORK
)ss.:
COUNTY OF
On this 2 Zw\day of Ty ,20 Zé before me personally came ] gy S Rurpe £ to
be known, who, being by me duly sworn did depose and say that he/she-resides at ' ; that he/she
is the {huif ( i!ﬂﬁf E;m“ 1hY@ of the Municipality described in and which executed the above instrument; that it was
executed by order of the [egxlatne of said Municipality pursuant to a resolution that was duly adopted on
'\j{l('t\ { (o , Zﬁl;i—;)and which a certified copy is attached and made a part hereof; and he/shesigned hisfer name
thereto by like order.
JENNIFER L CARUSO ({ ~
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF NEW YORK = ' - — i
Registration No. 02CA6395487 " Notary Public
Qualified in Putnam County |
My Commission Expires L |
APPROVED AS TO FORM APPROVAL BY NYS COMPTROLLER's OFFICE :

STATE OF NEW YORK ATTORNEY GENERAL

By: By:




NYSDOT Municipal Snow & Ice Program
AGREEMENT ADJUSTMENT/CALCULATION WORKSHEET

For Index Lump Sum Agreements
2024/25 Snow & Ice Season

Municipality PUTNAM COUNTY Contract # D014871
County v PUTNAM Region 8
Contract LM 120.3 | ‘
2023/24 Season's Estimated Expenditure $1,200,126.06
% Labor | 38.08% | Materials | 43.31% Equipment | 18.61%
Value $457,008.86 $519,827.93 $223,299.62
Labor*
Labor Portion of 2023/24 Season Estimated Expenditure $457,008.86
% Labor Increase/Decrease for 2024/25 Season
{Justification Att.) X 2.75%
Additipnal/Les_s Labpr_Cost_srfor_n 2024/25 ‘ _ 5121557'74 _ '
Labor Portion of 2024/25 Season Estimated Expenditure . | $469,576.60
* Attach Municipality's certification of applicable labor cost
increase
Materials
Materials Portion of 2023/24 Extension’s Estimated Expenditure  519,827.93
L IL LXIH
2023/24 2023/24 | 2024/25 + A Y
% Total Proportionate Price Price Difference | ~ ° Increase/
Materials | Material § S Amount Per Unit | Per Unit | (Show +/-) Decrease
Salt 100% |$519,827.93 | $519,827.93 $ 75.00 | $79.88 $ 4.88 6.51% | ¢ 33,840.80
Sand
Other
$ 553,668.73

Materials Portion of 2024/25 Season Estimated Expenditure -

Equipment
Equipment Portion of 2023/24 $223,299.62
% Equipment Increase/Decrease for 2024/25
Season X 0%
Additional/Less Equipment Costs for 2024/25 SO
; $223,299.62

Equipment Portion of 2024/25 Season Estimated Expenditure

'SUBTOTAL of Labor + Materials + Equipment $1,246,544.95




FIXED COSTS (fill out if necessary)

Salt Storage (Barns) 0
DTN Weather Service 0
Snow Fence 0
Oth 0
0
(Lafb"df + Materials- $1,246,544.95
SUMMARY OF COSTS
$ % $ %
Labor $456,998.51 | 38.08% $469,576.60 37.67%
Materials $519,827.93 | 43.31% $553,668.73 44.42%
Equipment | $223,299.62 | 18.61% $223,299.62 17.91%
Fixed Costs
TOTALS $1,200,126.06 100%  151,246,544.95 100%
A. 2024/25 Season Estimate/New Base Estimate $1,246,544.95
$6,232,724.75

B. Total C‘on‘tra‘cv_t Value (AxS) I

Estimate Recommended/Reviewed by

Resident Engineer

- Soe Bell Jeos - .R/f'ywu\%

Estimate Reviewed by
Municipality

X
4

Estimate Approved by

NYSDOT - Snow & lce Program Manager

¢ dwv{’b/



]

JOHN TULLY KEVIN M. BYRNE
Director County Executive
PURCHASING
MEMORANDUM
g
TO: Diane Schonfeld, Clerk, County Legislature e
;:{5
FROM: Alexis M Hawley, Asst. Supv. of Planning & Design =
7 =
cC: Thomas Feighery, Commissioner, Department of Public Works iy =g
Joseph Bellucci, Deputy Commissioner, Department of Public Works ‘:;% f
William Carlin, Commissioner, Department of Finance ':ém c::>
N
DATE: September 12, 2025
RE: Physical Services — 25CP05 — Walk-In Cooler & Associated Repairs at Putnam County

Golf Course

Please approve the necessary resolution to authorize 25CP05 in an amount not to exceed $50,000.

The existing walk-in cooler used in support of ongoing activities at the Putnam County Golf Course
has reached the end of its useful life. In order to keep the cooler in service for as long as possible,
the Department of Public Works has continued to make numerous ongoing repairs. However, repairs

are becoming more frequent and futile while the cooler’s operational longevity is becoming less
likely.

The Department of Public Works is proposing to replace the existing cooler with a new, comparable
unit to ensure reliable functionality and service for all operations which rely on the walk-in cooler at
the Golf Course.

Additionally, once the existing unit is removed, the Department of Public Works will need to repair
the floor structure beneath it. The floor has fallen into a state of disrepair and structural
improvements will be necessary to accommodate the new unit. The Department of Public Works
will address these flooring improvements in-house to conserve costs.

We respectfully request $50,000 so that the Department of Public Works can replace the existing
walk-in cooler and make the associated necessary structural flooring repairs.

Thank you for your consideration.

PUTNAM COUNTY OFFICE BUILDING
COUNTY OF PUTNAM ~ 40 GLENEIDA AVENUE ~ ROOM 105 ~ CARMEL, NY 10512
(845) 808-1088



Diane Schonfeld

R R IR
From: Alexis Hawley
Sent: Friday, September 12, 2025 2:13 PM
To: Diane Schonfeld
Cc: Thomas Feighery; William Carlin; Joseph Bellucci; John Tully
Subject: Physical Services - 25CP0O5 - Request for Consideration
Attachments: 25CP05 - Walk-In Cooler & Associated Repairs at Putnam County Golf Course.pdf

Diane:

Please find attached 25CPO5 — Walk-In Cooler and Associated Repairs at the Putnam County Golf Course for
consideration by the Physical Services Committee this month.

Please don’t hesitate to contact Tommy, Joe or | with any questions you may have.
Have a nice weekend!

Alexis

Alexis M. Hawley

Assistant Supervisor of Planning & Design e Putham County Department of Purchasing
and Cenfral Services

PHONE | 845.808.1088 » WEBSITE | PUTNAMCOUNTYNY.COM

PUTNAM COUNTY GOVERNMENT NEW YORK

"Empowering Putnam County through dedicated service.”




Physical Services Meeting
September 25, 2025
Item #8

Approval/ Contract- Terry Hill Route 311 Project/ Department of Public Works
Commissioner Thomas Feighery & Department of General Services Commissioner John
Tully

Attached Backup

IS
CONFIDENTIAL



WILLIAM J. CARLIN, Jr. CPA
Commissioner Of Finance

MEMORANDUM

To: Diane Schonfeld, Legisiative Clerk
From: William J. Carlin, Jr., Interim Commissioner of Finance "W
Re: Budgetary Amendment - 25A080

Date: September 2, 2025

At the request of the Finance, the following budgetary amendment is required.

CAPITAL FUND:
Increase Estimated Appropriations:

55197000 53000 52307 Terry Hill Road Improvements 100,000
Increase Estimated Revenues:

55197000 435971 52307 State Aid - ESD Grant 500,000
55197000 427050 52307 Contribution 100,000

Decrease Estimated Revenues:
05000 45710N 52307 Bond Proceeds 500,000

Fiscal Impact - 2025 - $ 0
Fiscal Impact - 2026 -$0

This Resolution is required to adjust the capital budget to account for the receipt of and
Empire State Development Grant and an agreement with L.I.S.E. Inc to fund up to
$ 100,000 in project right of way costs. Please forward to the appropriate committee.

Approved : :
Kevin M, Byrne, County Executive




& -
s BNt ORK

OPPORTUNITY
3

Empire State
| Development

July 17, 2025

County Executive Kevin Byrne
Putnam County

40 Gleneida Avenue, 3™ Floor
Carmel, NY 10512

Re: Putnam County — County Infrastructure Grant Program, Project # 139,315
Dear County Executive Byrne:

I'would like to take this opportunity to offer my congratulations on the acceptance of Putnam Counity’s
County Infrastructure Grant Program {CIGP) application and to update you on the next steps in Empire
State Development’s (“ESD”) grant process. Funds are being awarded (subject to the approval of the ESD
Board of Directors as set forth herein) for the following NYS CIGP project(s) to be used as outlined in your
original application:

County Infrastructure Grant Program Round 1

NYS Route 311 & Terry Hill Road intersection Improvements 3.25 — $500,000

Project Summary — This project involves roadway improvements to the State Route 311 and
CR46/Terry Hill Road intersection in the Town of Kent, including separate left turn lanes,
widening the northbound approach, reconstructing the turning radius, and widening the
associated approach. The project will also include the instailation of an actuated traffic
signal with pedestrian accommeodations, building a retaining wall to minimize impact on
adjacent properties, drainage improvements, curbing, sidewalk enhancements, landscaping
and resurfacing with new pavement markings.

® Total Project Cost: $1,800,000

Your ESD project manager will continue to periodically request updates and/or changes to your application
{revised timeline, State Environmental Quality Review Act {“SEQRA”} update, State Historic Preservation
Office (“SHPO”) review information, Smart Growth Impact Statement (“SGIS”) etc.}. This project manager
will work with you as necessary to finalize your application.

When your application has been finalized and when the oroject is nearing completion, Putnam County’s
County Infrastructure Grant Program project will be presented to the ESD Board of Directors for approval.
The Directors typically meet on a monthly basis. Please note that no project will be presented to the ESD
Board of Directors far approval until the SEQRA, SHPO and SGIS reviews have been completed and proof of
matching funds has been clearly demonstrated. Please also note that there is a one percent (1%) non-
reimbursable commitment fee assessed to all awardees based on the grant amount awarded. The
commitment fee will be due when the applicant executes documents required for processing the award,
following approval by ESD Directors.

Empire State Development

{ www.esd.ny.gov




STACE OF

¢ NEWYORK Empire State
3:\}20“’"“'" Development

Pursuant to New York State Executive Law Articles 15-A and Article 3 of New York State Veterans’ Services
Law, ESD recognizes its obligation under the law to promote opportunities for maximum feasible
participation of certified minority and women-owned business enterprises (MWBESs) and service-disabled
veteran-owned businesses (SDVOBs) in the performance of ESD projects. As a recipient of this award, Putnam
County shall be required to use Good Faith Efforts to achieve MWBE and SDVOB Participation. In addition,
ESD’s MWBE and SDVCB Participation/Equal Employment Oppartunity Policy will apply to this project. While
ESD’s agency-wide MWBE goal is 30% and SDVOB goal is 6%, your individual project-specific goal may be
higher or lower based an the detailed scope of work, budget, and information on additional sources of
funding you provide on the Grant Budget and Questions form. You will be required to use Good Faith Efforts
to achieve the goals assigned to this project. Compliance with laws and the policy of ESD prohibiting
discrimination in employment on the basis of age, race, creed, color, national origin, gender, sexual
preference, disability or marital status shalf also be required. The Office of Contractor and Suppilier Diversity
{"OCSD"} will monitor MWBE and SDVOB utilization in connection with this project.

Foliowing board approval, alf CIGP projects must go through ESD’s public hearing process and subsequently
be approved by the Public Authorities Control Board. Once these final steps are achieved, your project
manager will send you a Grant Disbursement Agreement (“GDA”) for execution. Project disbursements may
only occur after ESD’s receipt of the executed GDA and with the submission of the appropriate supporting
documentation. As mentioned throughout the application process, payments will be made in lump sum
upon preoject completion on a reimbursable basis. g

This award shall terminate two calendar years from the date of this letter if the project has not
commenced. Please be aware that ESD may require restrictions on the future use of awarded sites
consistent with the purposes of their CIGP grant terms.

Your Project Manager will reach out shortly to answer any questions you may have. We look forward to
working with you on this important project.

Sincerely,

.
X —

Linda Malave
Mid-Hudson Regional Director

CC: Jose Arroyo, Project Manager
Ridwan Ahmed, OCSD Compliance Manager
Barbara Barosa, Putnam County Commissioner of Planning

dser MY L
www.esd.ny.gov




RESOLUTION/APPROVAL TO APPLY FOR NEW YORK STATE ROADWAY
DEPARTURE SAFETY ACTION PLAN (RwDSAP) LOCAL CALL FOR PROJECTS
WHICH PROVIDES FEDERAL HIGHWAY SAFETY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
FUNDS FOR THE STONELEIGH AVENUE/ DREWVILLE ROAD INTERSECTION
RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT (PIN 8761.97) IN PUTNAM COUNTY

WHEREAS, New York State Department of Transportation (NYSDOT) announced the
local call for roadway departure projects included in the Statewide Roadway Departure Safety
Action Plan (RWDSAP). The local call for Roadway Departure safety projects includes federal
Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) funds for systemic or “Hot Spot” roadway
departure safety projects on local and county roads and streets which will fund up to 95% of
project costs; and

WHEREAS, the County was invited to submit a proposal for consideration by NYSDOT
in August 2025; and

WHEREAS, Putnam County (“the County’) desires to submit a proposal to NYSDOT for
consideration, namely, the Stoneleigh Avenue/ Drewville Road Intersection Reconstruction
Project (PIN 8761.97) (the “Project”), of which a budget shortfall was recently identified in the
amount of $1,280,400; and

WHEREAS, the County, as the Municipality/Sponsor of the Project, desires to accept the
funds if County’s request for funding is approved by New York State, by and through the
RwWDSAP Program, in the amount of $1,280,400, of which the County would be responsible to
contribute the local match of $64,020; now therefore be it

RESOLVED, that the Putnam County Leglslature hereby approves the aforesaid Project;
and it is hereby further

RESOLVED, that the Putnam County Legislature hereby authorizes the County to accept
the funding if the application is approved by New York State, thereby reducing the total Project
costs by said amount; and it is hereby further

RESOLVED, that the County Executive, with the advice and assistance of the County
Attorney, is authorized to finalize and execute a grant agreement upon approval of the Project
. proposal and presentment of said Agreement by NYSDOT; and it is hereby further

RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall take effect immediately.

ALNNGOD ¢

FENLYT
§%:¢ Hd 91 433 520



Diane Schonfeld

From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:
Subject:

Attachments:

Good Afternoon,

Barbara Barosa

Tuesday, September 16, 2025 1:50 PM

Diane Schonfeld; Diane Trabuisy

Thomas Feighery; Joseph Bellucci; Alexis Hawley; Jennifer Nygard; County Executive
Resolution for NYSDOT Roadway Departure Safety Action Plan funding for Stoneleigh/
Drewville

Resolution-Auth NYS Funding Roadway Departure Safety Action Plan 2025.docx

Please see attached for a Resolution requesting to apply NYSDOT Roadway Departure Safety Action Plan funding
for Stoneleigh Avenue/ Drewville Rd Intersection Improvements Project to be placed for consideration on this
month’s Physical Services agenda. Please let me know if you require anything further.

Thankyou,
Barbara

Barbara Barosa, AICP

Commissioner @ Department of Planning, Development & Public Transportation @
PHONE | 845.878-3480 @ WEBSITE | PUTNAMCOUNTYNY.COM

PUTNAM COUNTY NEW YORK GOVERNMENT

"Empowering Putnam County through dedicated service.”




i,"s L/ ‘, . (_‘1'? }“)
e 4 ;. / '«'g\wa’. ’

37

KEVIN M. BYRNE + [ /

PUTNAM COUNTY EXECUTIVE

WILLIAM J. CARLIN, Jr. CPA
Commissioner Of Finance

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE

MEMORANDUM

T0: Dianc Schonfeld. Legislative Clerk
FROM: William J. Carlin, Jr., Interim Commissioner of Finance @v} é’
RE: Ratification of 2025 Real Property Tax Sale

Date:  September 8, 2025

Please {ind enclosed a proposed Resolution, along with a proposed schedule A, ratifying the
results of the 2025 Real Property Tax Sale Held September 5, 2025 for review and approval by

the Legislature.

55 of 56 parcels received bids at the auction, with sales revenue equaling $ 1,828,015, and when
the sales arc completed approximately $ 3.2 million is assessed value will be returned to the
property tax rolls.




APPROVAL - RATIFICATION OF THE 2025 REAL PROPERTY TAX SALE

WHEREAS, on September §, 2025, the County of Putnam held a public auction for
its 2025 Real Property Tax Sale; and

WHEREAS, the County received bids on the parcels offered, as indicated by the
listing attached hereto and made a part hereof as Schedule “A”; now therefore be it

RESOLVED, that the Putnam County Legislature, on behalf of the County of
Putnam, hereby accepts the bid of the highest bidder on the parcels listed on the attached
Schedule “A”; and be it further

RESOLVED, that the County Attorney is authorized to prepare a deed for each
parcel to the highest bidder, said deed to be executed on behalf of the County by the
County Executive; and be it further

RESOLVED, that upon delivery of the balance of the purchase price as indicated in
the bid, along with the appropriate transfer tax, fees, and any property taxes due, as
specified in the promulgated Terms and Conditions of the auction, the County Attorney is
hereby authorized to deliver said deed to the highest bidder; and be it further

RESOLVED, that in the event any of the highest bidders fail to complete the
transaction as specified in the promulgated Terms and Conditions of the auction, the
County Attorney is authorized to complete the transaction with the second highest bidder
in the same manner as set for the above.




2025 PUTNAM COUNTY TAX SALE AUCTION SALE CLOSING DATE 9/5/2025

Lot Number! Lot Title . Tawn TaxMap# Lot Price
67 Willow Trail Ct. Town of Carmel Lot Size: 80 X 119 +/-, NOTE: LOTS 1 AND 22 ARE BEING
1 COMBINED. ‘Carmel 144.10-1-9 $500
2 LANDLOCKED PARCEL: 15 Blueberry Hill Rd, Town of Carmet Lot Size: 1.62 Acres +/- Carmel :53.12-1-39 $12,000
3 LANDLOCKED PARCEL: Peekskill Hollow Rd, Town of Carmel Lot Size: 15,79 Acres +/- Carmel {53.13-1-10 $30.000.
4 32 Highland Rd, Town of Carmet Lot Size: 1 Acres +/- Carmel :63.16-1-48 838,000,
5 11 Meadow Dr, Town of Carmel Lot Size: 1.21 Acres +/- Carmel 155.19-1-18.1 $362,000
[ Plum Rd, Town of Carmel Lot Size: 94 X 250 +/~ Carmel i76.17-2-23 56,500
7 122 Archer Rd, Town of Carmel Lot Size: 1.36 Acres +/- Carmel 185.8-2-1 $39,000
8 Laurie Ct, Town of Kent Lot Size: .63 Acres +/- Kent 111.16-1-4 $3,500
9 Ludingtonville Rd, Town of Kent Lot Size: 2.78 Acres +/- ‘Kent 22,-2-42 $9,000
10 Ludingtonville Rd, Town of Kent Lot Size: 2.05 Acres +/- iKent 22.-2-43 $12,000
11 Route 311, Town of Kent Lot Size: .23 Acres +/- iKent 22.-2-49 $3,500
12 Harvard Dr, Town of Kent Lot Size: .29 Acres +/- Kent 22.66-2-5 $4,500
13 Rhinebeck Rd, Town of Kent Lot Size: .27 Acres +/- iKent 22.79-1-6 34,500
14 PAPER STREET ACCESS ONLY: Scarborough Paper Rd, Town of Kent Lot Size: 296 x 91 +/- iKent 22.80-1-21 $500
15 Pudding St, Town of Kent Lot Size: 1.76 Acres +/- iKent 30.20-1-32 $40,500
16 71 Richardsville Rd, Town of Kent Lot Size: 4.85 Acres +/- iKent 31.-1-26 $150,000
17 Cottage Rd, Town of Kent Lot Size:.23 Acres +/- iKent 33.34-2-14 $4,500
18 8 Heathcote Rd, Town of Kent Lot Size: .12 Acres +/- IKent 33.74-1-36 $178.000
19 Brayton Rd, Town of Kent Lot Size: .28 Acres +/- iKent 33.81-1-71 $9,800
20 Golf Ridge Rd, Town of Kent Lot Size: 5.2 Acres +/- Kent 42.11-1-16 $188,000
21 LANDLOCKED PARCEL: Smokey Hollow Ct, Town of Kent Lot Size: .31 Acres +/- Kent 43.-2-36 30
Willow Trail Ct, Town of Kent Lot Size: .01 Acres +/- NOTE: LOTS 1 AND 22 ARE BEING COMBINED.
22 BIDDING WILL TAKE PLACE UNDER LOT 1 AND SEPARATE FEES APPLY FOR EACH LOT Kent 44.10-2-3 $0
23 718 Rt 311, Town of Patterson Lot Size: 1.69 Acres +/- Patterson 13.-2-16 $215,000
24 54 Sanborn Rd. Town of Patterson Lot Size: 300 x 200 +/- |Pattersan 25.39-1-54 $6,500
25  LANDLOCKED PARCEL: Ferndale Ln, Town of Patterson Lot Size: .29 Acres +/- Patterson 25.41-1-3% $500
26 13 Salisbury Rd, Town of Patterson Lot Size: .17 Acres +/- Pattersan 25.70-1-32 $1,500
27 8 Sullivan Dr, Town of Patterson Lot Size: 21 Acres +/- Patterson 25.70-1-33 $2,515
28 56 Empire Dr, Town of Patterson Lot Size: .36 Acres +/- Patterson 36.22-1-36 o $5,500
29 PAPER STREET ACCESS ONLY: Batavia Rd, Town of Patterson Lot Size: 100 X112 +/- Patterson 36.22-1-42 $500
30 Batavia Rd, Town of Patterson Lot Size: .18 Acres +/- |Patterson :136.22-1-44 $500
31 '93 Havitand Dr, Town of Patterson Lot Size: .16 Acres +/- Patterson 36.31-1-57 $106,000
32 {14 Valley Rd, Town of Patterson Lot Size: .08 Acres +/- Patterson 36.41-1-32 $500
33 S Valley Rd, Town of Patterson Lot Size: .12 Acres +/- Patterson 36.41-1-37 $1,500
34 [8Fairport Rd, Town of Patterson Lot Size: 1.13 Acres +/- [Patterson 36.48-1-10 $52,000
35 24 Palmyra Rd, Town of Patterson Lot Size: 18 Acres +/- |Patterson 36.48-2-17 $140,000
36 Brookside Ave, Town of Putnam Valley Lot Size: .57 Acres +/- IPutnam Valley 41,14-1-79 $5,500
37 Wenonah Rd, Town of Putnam Valley Lot Size: .47 Acres +/- Putnam Valley 62.25-1-7 $18,500
38 10 Cold Spring Rd, Town of Putnam Valiey Lot Size: 169 x 120 +/- Putnam Valley 62.25-1-9 $52,000
39 Lake Dr, Town of Putnam Valley Lot Size: .15 Acres +/- Putnam Valley 83.50-1-3 $4,600
40 Tanglewylde Rd, Town of Putnam Valley Lot Size: .12 Acres +/- Putnam Valley 83.50-1-18 $2,500
41 Tanglewylde Rd, Town of Putnam Valley Lot Size: .23 Acres +/- Putnam Valley 183.50-1-19 $3,600
42 Tanglewylde Rd, Town of Putnam Valley Lot Size: .17 Acres +/- Putnam Valley 183.50-1-21 $3,500
43 Northway, Town of Putnam Valley Lot Size: .09 Acres +/- Putnam Valley 83.58-1-63 $1,500
44 Hewitt St, Town of Putnam Valley Lot Size: 40x 99 +/- .Putnam Valley 83.66-2-34 $1.500
45 Aspen Ln, Town of Putnam Valley Lot Size: .2 Acres +/- ‘Putnam Valley 83.72-1-50 $1,500
46 Tanglewylde Rd, Town of Putnamn Valley Lot Size: .21 Acres +/- iPutnam Valley 83.73-2-2 3500
47 Traverse fRd, Town of Putnam Valley Lot Size: .54 Acres +/- {Putnam Valley 83.73-2-4 $6,500
48 Lake Dr, Town of Putnam Valley Lot Size: .44 Acres +/- {Putnam Valley 83.73-2-25 $22.500
49 Grant Pl, Town of Putnam Valley Lot Size: .13 Acres +/- {Putnam Valley 83.83-1-34 $500
50 288 Peekskill Hollow Rd, Town of Putnam Valley Lot Size: 1 Acres +/- 'Putnam Vallay 84.7-1-50 $18,000
51 Summer St, Town of Putnam Valley LotSize:.04 Acres +/- | Putnam Valley 86.13-1-17 $500
§2 Barger St, Town of Putnam Valley Lot Size: .13 Acres +/- ‘Putnam Valley 85.13-1-50 $500
53 Marshall Rd, Town of Putnam Valley Lot Size: .08 Acres +/- ‘Putnam Valley 91.26-2-32 $1,500
54 Hollowbrook Rd, Town of Putnam Valley Lot Size: .02 Acres +/- {Putnam Valley 91.34-1-11 $5001
55 /300 Tonetta Lake Rd. Town of Southeast Lot Size: 170 x 140 +/- iSoutheast 56.12-1-2 $2.500
56 195 Deans Corner Rd, Town of Southeast Lot Size: 5,86 Acres +/- ‘Sautheast 78.-1-66 $51.000
‘ i $1,828,015




P 505 YL 12

KEVIN M. BYRNE
PUTNAM COUNTY EXECUTIVE

RIAN RODRIGUEZ, MPH
PUBLIC HEALTH DIRECTOR

MEMORANDUM

Date:  September 9, 2025
To: Legislator Greg Ellner

Cc: County Executive Kevin Byrne

From: Rian Rodriguez, Public Health Director
Valerie Kurtz, Early Intervention and Preschool Supervisor

Subject: ELC Enrollment

At the time of this writing, the Putnam County Early Learning Center currently has 19 students enrolled. Of the 19
young learners, there are 10 students who are receiving services through the CPSE (Committee on Preschool Special
Education) and 9 students who are attending through their district UPK (Universal Pre-Kindergarten) pathway. We are
thrilled that the first week of school was a true success, with staff onboarding, parent-teacher introductions, and finally,

and most importantly, welcoming students to their new learning space.

While there remain 5 open spots, we have 3 interested families as well as a potential transfer of student(s) from another
program. Once we are at our maximum capacity of 24 students, we anticipate we will maintain this level of enroliment

for the remainder of the school-year.

N
n
1937 .

Ik
]

AN 131

NNoJ 1

ELTITAR IS
Lh:2ARd 01 435 ez

" PUTNAM COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH » | GENEVA RD » BREWSTER, NEW YORK 10509
OFFICE 845.808.1390 o FAX 845.278.7921 e E-MAIL PutnamHealth@putnamcountyny.gov

WWW . PUTNAMCOUNTYNY.GOV



THE PUTNAM COUNTY LEGISLATURE
40 Gleneida Avenue
Carmel, New York 10512
(845) 808-1020 Fax (845) 808-1933

Nancy Montgomery Dist. 1
William Gouldman Dist. 2
Amy E. Sayegh Chairwoman Toni E. Addonizio Dist. 3
Greg E. Ellner Deputy Chair Laura E. Russo Dist. 4
Diane Schonfeld Clerk Greg E. Ellner Dist. 5
Paul E. Jonke Dist. 6
Daniel G. Birmingham Dist. 7
Amy E. Sayegh Dist. 8
Erin L. Crowley Dist. 9

MEMORANDUM
DATE: September 8, 2025

TO: Kevin Byrne
Putnam County Executive

FROM:  Greg Ellner WW
Chairman, Physical Services Committee
Legislator, District #5

CC. Rian Rodriguez, Public Health Director
Valerie Kurtz, Supervisor of Early Intervention & Preschool

RE: Early Learning Center
Respectfully, | request Public Health Director Rodriguez provide the number of students
currently enrolled in the Early Learning Center. Also, please provide the number of

enroliments for January 2026.

Thank you for your attention to this request.




